
SWANZEY PLANNING BOARD MINUTES 
FEBRUARY 14, 2013 

 
[Note:  Minutes are not final until reviewed and approved by the Board.  Review and approval of 
minutes generally takes place at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board.] 
 
The regular meeting of the Swanzey Planning Board was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Chair 
Glenn Page.  Members present:  Glenn Page, Scott Self, June Fuerderer, Joe Smith, Selectmen's 
Representative Deb Davis and alternates Jane Johnson and Paula Miller.  Miller was seated for 
Gus Lerandeau.  Johnson was seated for Jeff Goller.  Town Planner Sara Carbonneau was also 
present.  The agenda for the evening’s meeting was read and the following matters were 
addressed: 
 
Regional Impact:  Board members considered whether any items on the agenda could 
“reasonably be construed as having the potential for regional impact.”  Motion by Fuerderer 
that no items on the agenda could reasonably be construed as having the potential for regional 
impact.  Seconded by Smith.  Vote:  All in favor. 
 
A.  PUBLIC HEARINGS ‐ 
 
1.  Home Occupation Application ‐ Mark P. McIntire wishes to utilize the property situated at 10 
Day Road for a gun smith shop (small repairs ‐ no retail sales).  The property is situated in the 
Residence District, shown at Tax Map 32, Lot 25‐2.  Mark McIntire appeared before the Board.  
Numerous abutters and interested citizens were present.  Public hearing opened. 
  Page reviewed the details of the home occupation application, noting that the Board of 
Selectmen certified the use as meeting the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance on January 
22, 2013.  Selectmen noted "concern for hazardous pollutants ‐ noise, odor, smoke, etc."  It was 
noted that the proposed home occupation occupied a space consisting of less than 300 s.f. and 
that there would only be one employee.  McIntire stated that he planned on being open on 
Saturdays only, from 1 to 6 p.m. by appointment only.  However, he would work on other days 
that would not entail customer traffic.  There are no plans for a sign at the present time. 
  McIntire stated that there would be small amounts of varnish, stain, etc. kept on site, 
with the quantities being no different from a typical homeowner. 
  Board members acknowledged the receipt of a letter from Justina Patrick (received 
February 14, 2013), which was shared with the audience.  Board members also were in receipt 
of email correspondence from Joanne Mead dated February 13, 2013. 
  Page stated that any approval by the Board of the home occupation application would 
be subject to review and approval by the Code Enforcement Officer and the Fire Chief, as well as 
receipt of his Federal Fireams Permit/License.  Page noted that according to State statute, the 
Board cannot mandate that McIntire first receive his Federal Permit prior to coming before the 
Planning Board.  McIntire noted that he cannot even apply for his Federal Permit until he has 
the local approval in hand. 
  McIntire explained the nature of his proposed business, noting that a small metal lathe 
and milling machine would be utilized.  McIntire stated that all firearms would be kept secured 
in a commercial gun safe.  There would be no retail sales of guns or ammunition.  In addition, 
there would be no testing of the firearms on site.   

Swanzey Planning Board Minutes – February 14, 2013 
Page 1 of 3 



  Curtis Mead expressed concern about potential noise generated from the business.  
McIntire maintained that the noise generated would be far less than a lawnmower.  C. Mead 
stated that the noise generated by a lawnmower is a typical residential attribute. 
  J. Mead asked if there were any windows in the structure proposed to be utilized for the 
business.  McIntire stated that there were no windows.  J. Mead asked if there was air‐
conditioning in the structure.  McIntire stated that there was not.  When asked how he would 
operate in the heat of summer, McIntire stated that the door to the structure would remain 
open and that he would utilize a fan to stay cool. 
  James Konopka stated that the proposed use would increase the number of guns in the 
neighborhood.  McIntire stated that there would be no more than 3 or 4 customers' guns on site 
at any one time.  McIntire stated that the guns would typically be rifles and shot guns and that 
he would not work on assault weapons. 
  J. Konopka asked how McIntire would screen customers.  McIntire stated that there are 
detailed regulations about recording customer information and the firearms they bring to him. 
  Susan Doyle, a realtor from Masiello Real Estate, expressed her opinion that she did not 
feel that the proposed use "fit" within the uses set forth in the Zoning Ordinance.  She also 
expressed concern about the potential negative impact on property values. 
  Cynthia Roder expressed concern about the security of the proposed structure.  
McIntire again stated that the firearms would be kept in a commercial, locked, fireproof, heavy 
duty gun safe and that no ammunition would be kept there. 
  J. Mead stated that she would concerned about the neighborhood children playing in 
the neighborhood and seeing customers "come and go with guns."  J. Mead asked how does a 
gun business fit into a residential neighborhood and that this could be considered an attractive 
nuisance. 
  Page stated that he considers this to be a light machine shop and that it fits into the 
Zoning Regulations adopted by the Town.  Page stated that he didn't see any difference if 
McIntire was working on boat parts versus gun parts. 
  Stephanie Konopka noted that if the Board approves this use, she would consider it a 
"game changer" and would not feel comfortable having children playing outside.  She also noted 
that if the home occupation was approved that she would have to sell her house, and expressed 
fear that she wouldn't get what the house was worth. 
  C. Mead asked if conditions could be attached to any approval, in the event that the 
Board decides to grant the application.  C. Mead stated that he would want a time limitation on 
the approval, so that the Board could revisit the use to determine if there were any issues.  J. 
Mead stated that she would like to see a stockade fence erected, a restriction that the firearms 
are carried in bags (so that the children can't see them), and a security system be put in place.   
  McIntire stated that there are other instances in town where a gunsmith is in a 
residential neighborhood (Wilson Pond) and that there have not been any problems.  Page 
noted that there is a machine shop on Westbrook Court and a gunsmith in Pine Grove Mobile 
Home Cooperative. 
  S. Konopka stated that the proposed home occupation will increase safety concerns and 
will bring strangers to the neighborhood.  S. Konopka also stated that since there are no street 
lights in the neighborhood, someone looking to break into the premises may mistake her house 
for the gunsmithing shop and harm her family.  Public hearing closed. 
  Motion by Self to grant the home occupation application subject to the following 
conditions: 
  a.  Approval to be for a period of one year, with a compliance hearing at the end of the 1 
year period; 

Swanzey Planning Board Minutes – February 14, 2013 
Page 2 of 3 



  b.  Federal Firearms Permit/License must be obtained; and 
  c.  Review and approval from the Code Enforcement Officer and the Fire Chief. 
Seconded by Page.  Vote in favor:  Self, Page and Miller.  Opposed:  Fuerderer, Smith, Johnson & 
Davis.  Motion failed. 
  Motion by Smith to deny the home occupation application due to concerns regarding 
noise, odor and smoke.  Seconded by Johnson.  Vote in favor of the motion (denying the 
application):  Smith, Davis, Fuerderer and Johnson.  Opposed to the motion:  Page, Self and 
Miller.  Motion carries and the home occupation application is denied. 
   
B.  DISCUSSIONS/OTHER BUSINESS ‐ 
 
1.  Master Plan Update ‐ Board members discussed updating the master plan.  Page and Self will 
update the utilities section and Carbonneau will prepare a draft update of the Community 
Facilities section.  Carbonneau noted that it is likely that the Open Space Committee would be 
willing to undertake the update of the Open Space Plan (currently part of the Master Plan, but 
was completed after the 2003 update ‐ therefore, it is not included in the executive summary).   
It was also suggested that each department head prepare an update/draft of their respective 
sections under Town Government. 
 
2.  West Swanzey Water Company ‐ Board members discussed the need to evaluate the West 
Swanzey Water Company and determine whether this is something that the Town should be 
looking at acquiring. 
 
3.  Road Safety Audit ‐ Carbonneau reviewed the recent road safety audit regarding Route 32 
and Sawyer's Crossing Road with the Planning Board 
 
4.  Minutes from January 24, 2013 ‐ It was noted that the reference to "Route 23" on Page 2 
(1st paragraph) should be changed to "Route 12."  Motion by Self to approve the minutes as 
amended.  Seconded by Fuerderer.  Vote:  All in favor.   
 
Motion by Fuerderer to adjourn.  Seconded by Smith.  Vote:  All in favor.  Meeting adjourned at 
7:24 p.m. 
 
Submitted by, 
 
 
 
Sara H. Carbonneau 
Town Planner 
 
 

Swanzey Planning Board Minutes – February 14, 2013 
Page 3 of 3 


